
West Plainfield Fire Protection District 
24901 County Road 95, Davis, CA 95616 (530) 756-0212

BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS – REGULAR MEETING 
June 21, 2022 at 7:00 PM 

To be Held 
24905 County Road 95, Lillard Hall 

Davis, CA 95616 

1. Call the Meeting to Order and Establish Quorum (President McMullen)

2. Public Comment

3. Old Business

a. Update - Weed Abatement (BC Wilson)

b. Update – Yolo County Fire Sustainability Committee (AC Stiles)

c. Update – Commissioner Hjerpe and Beoshanz Recognition (Chief Rita)

d. Update – Joint Operations Agreement with Willow Oak Fire Protection
District (Chief Rita)

i. Introduction – Fire Chief Marcus Klinkhammer, Willow Oak Fire

ii. Introduction – Asst Fire Chief Jon Guse, Willow Oak Fire

e. Discussion / Action – Holiday Leave – Paid Out Monthly (as adopted) vs
Allowed to Accrue with Vacation Leave

4. Lillard Hall

a. Manager Report (Hall Manager Gonzalez)

5. New Business

a. Discussion / Action - Volunteer Applications (Chief Rita)

i. Keegan Kevan

b. Discussion  / Action – Sale of 1994 Model 9 (AC Stiles)

c. Discussion / Action – Standing Committees – Reports

i. Budget and Benefits Committee – Yeager, Guarino

1. Discussion / Action – Adopt 2022-2023 Budget

ii. Personnel Committee – Amy, Yeager

iii. District Funding and Development Committee - Guarino, Amy

iv. Lillard Hall Committee – Amy, Guarino

1. Discussion / Action – Approve June 2, 2022 minutes
(Commissioner Amy)

Agenda Packet - 06-21-2022 - Board - Regular Page 1

(Pg 3)

(Pg 4)

(Pg 5)

(Pg 6-7)



Agenda – Board Meeting – Regular 
June 21, 2022 
Page 2 

2. Discussion / Action – Alter Hall Agreement language to amend
Meeting Fees to $50 per 2-hour block and add a $200 deposit
for meetings (Commissioner Amy)

d. Discussion / Action – Ad Hoc Committee Reports

i. LAFCO – Guarino, Yeager

ii. Solar – Guarino, McMullen

iii. Inspection Fees – Yeager, Amy

e. Discussion / Action – Liaison Reports

i. Fire Prevention / Investigation – McMullen

ii. Training – Yeager

iii. Large Equipment / Facilities – McMullen

iv. IHS - McMullen

6. Fire Chief’s Report (Chief Rita)

7. Battalion Chief’s Report (BC Wilson)

8. Fire Fighter’s Association Report (Jon Lee)

9. Clerk’s Report (Interim Clerk Rita)

a. Discussion / Action – West Plainfield Fire Protection District Bill Review /
Approval

b. Approval of May 17, 2022 Board Meeting Minutes (Interim Clerk Rita)

10. Open Forum

11. Next regular Board meeting on July 19, 2022, unless another date is agreed upon

12. Meeting Adjourned (President McMullen)

Agenda Packet - 06-21-2022 - Board - Regular Page 2

(Pg 8-13)

(Pg 22)
(Pg 23-31)



 

Agenda Packet - 06-21-2022 - Board - Regular Page 3



Date Name Event Date Status Deposit Rental Fee Total Due Event TypeActive/Inactive
10/25/21 7/23/22 Awaiting Rental Fee $550 $800 $1,350 Baptism ReceptionActive
2/28/22 6/4/22 Paid $800 $800 $1,600 Baptism ReceptionActive
2/28/22 6/11/22 Paid $800 $800 $1,600 Birthday Party Active
2/28/22 5/7/22 Paid $800 $800 $1,600 Birthday Party Active
3/1/22 5/11/22 Paid $50 $50 Meeting Active
3/1/22 5/12/22 Paid $50 $50 Meeting Active
3/1/22 5/18/22 Paid $50 $50 Meeting Active
3/1/22 5/19/22 Paid $50 $50 Meeting Active
3/1/22 5/25/22 Paid $50 $50 Meeting Active
3/1/22 5/26/22 Paid $50 $50 Meeting Active
3/1/22 6/1/22 Awaiting Rental Fee $50 $50 Meeting Active
3/1/22 6/2/22 Awaiting Rental Fee $50 $50 Meeting Active
3/1/22 6/8/22 Awaiting Rental Fee $50 $50 Meeting Active
3/1/22 6/9/22 Awaiting Rental Fee $50 $50 Meeting Active
3/1/22 6/15/22 Awaiting Rental Fee $50 $50 Meeting Active
3/1/22 6/22/22 Awaiting Rental Fee $50 $50 Meeting Active
3/1/22 6/23/22 Awaiting Rental Fee $50 $50 Meeting Active
3/1/22 6/29/22 Awaiting Rental Fee $50 $50 Meeting Active
3/1/22 6/30/22 Awaiting Rental Fee $50 $50 Meeting Active
4/29/22 8/6/22 Paid $800 $800 $1,600 Baptism ReceptionActive
5/12/22 9/24/22 Paid $800 $800 $1,600 Baptism ReceptionActive
3/7/22 5/28/22 Paid $800 $800 $1,600 Wedding Active
4/4/22 5/10/22 Paid $0 NonProfit Active
4/12/22 5/14/22 Paid $800 $800 $1,600 Birthday Party Active
5/3/22 10/1/22 Paid $800 $800 NonProfit Active
5/24/22 5/26/22 Paid Memorial Service Active
5/25/22

Sorana A
Marisol T

Ernesto/Marisol S
Juana A
Jennie K
Jennie K
Jennie K
Jennie K
Jennie K
Jennie K
Jennie K
Jennie K
Jennie K
Jennie K
Jennie K
Jennie K
Jennie K
Jennie K
Jennie K

Analyse L
Martha C
Maria M 

Amber R-B
Jennifer V
Tristen L
Brenda D
Heather S 6/18/22 Paid Memorial Service Active

27 $6,950 $7,150 $14,100

Account Balance 
Date Name Event Date Description Amount As of 5/18/22

5/18/22 Jennie K May 2022 Rental Fee $300.00 $21,999.36
5/20/22 Maria M 5/28/22 Rental Fee $800.00
5/20/22 Marisol T 6/4/2022 Rental Fee $800.00
5/31/22 Marisol S 6/11/2022 Rental Fee $800.00

Date Expense Description Invoice # Amount Paid Date Check No.
5/17/22 Jennifer V Deposit Refund $800.00 5/17/22 589
5/31/22 Recology Garbage Acct# 2376675 $375.22 6/6/22 591

ictPG&E Reimburs5/30/22 WPFPD PGE & Hall Manager Reimbursement $906.63 6/6/22 590
6/9/22 Hall's Plumbing Plumbing issue 25484614 $313.00 6/10/22 594
6/14/22 Cal.Net Hall Internet Acct# 19098 $60.43 6/14/22 596
6/2/22 Maria M Deposit Refund $800.00 6/2/22 592
6/7/22 Marisol T Deposit Refund $800.00 6/7/22 593
6/14/22 Maisol S Deposit Refund $800.00 6/14/22 595

Lillard Hall Reservations - June 2022

Lillard Hall Deposits - June 2022

Lillard Hall Expenses - June 2022

Agenda Packet - 06-21-2022 - Board - Regular Page 4



6/17/22, 4:32 PM West Plainfield Fire Department Mail - Fwd: 1994 model 9

https://mail.google.com/mail/u/0/?ik=72525226a0&view=pt&search=all&permthid=thread-f%3A1735297892252987353%7Cmsg-f%3A1735297892252987353&simpl=msg-f%3A1735297892252987353… 2/2

From: Randy Dunn <randy@dunnvineyards.com> 
Date: June 10, 2022 at 12:03:18 PM PDT 
To: dstiles@westplainfieldfire.com 
Subject: 1994 model 9 

Dave, as per our phone conversation, I would like to formally make an offer of $5000 for
your Model 9.  This is an "as is" offer with the exception that you offered to install two new
batteries, that I will separately reimburse you for.  As we spoke, we live in a severe fire
danger in Angwin.  This truck will be a valuable asset to our protection. 

Regards,  
Randy Dunn 

Sent from my iPad 

--  
Cherie Rita
Fire Chief
West Plainfield FPD
24901 CR 95
Davis, CA 95616
(530) 756-0212
(530) 902-0434

Agenda Packet - 06-21-2022 - Board - Regular Page 5

mailto:randy@dunnvineyards.com
mailto:dstiles@westplainfieldfire.com


 

          

  West Plainfield Fire Protection District   
24901 County Road 95, Davis, CA 95616                (530) 756-0212 

                
 

MINUTES - STANDING COMMITTEE – LILLARD HALL 
June 2, 2022 @ 4:00 PM 

 
Held: 

Lillard Hall  
24901 County Rd 95 

Davis, CA 95616 
 
1) Call the Meeting to Order 

Meeting was called to order by Commissioner Amy at 4:04 pm.  

Present: Commissioner Emily Amy, Chair 
  Commissioner Richard Guarino 
  Hall Manager Brenda Gonzalez 
 

2) Public Comment 

None 

 

3) Discussion / Action – Revisions to Hall User Agreement – Meetings 

Definition – See page 3 of the Lillard Hall Use/Rental Policies, under Application Approval. Revise item 2 to 
read as follows: 

 

2.   A meeting defined as an event lasting no longer than two hours, hosted by an entity, with no food 
or beverage service.  Additional two-hour block is available for an additional fee, with manager 
approval. 

 

Fees – See page 4 of the Lillard Hall Use/Rental Policies, under Rental Fee and Security Deposit. Revise 
Meeting Rental fee to: $50 per 2-hour block; Security Deposit to $200*; and add below: * Non-profit meeting 
may request a waiver on the deposit; upon approval of Hall Manager. 

 

4) Discussion – Paying Bills  

Per Hall Manager, Recology was shown paid on the May Manager’s report under Lillard Hall Expenses: paid 
April 29, 2022, in the amount of $1,135.66, check number #588. The Hall Manager indicated she has not 
received any Recology invoice since that one. 

 

WiFi (CalNet) has been paid and will be shown on the June Manager’s report. 

 

Received Fire Dept reimbursement invoice Monday, will write check and coordinate with Commissioner 
Guarino for a signature on Friday. 

 

Reviewed the need for Manager to submit timecards on time. 

 

D   R
   A

   F
   T

Agenda Packet - 06-21-2022 - Board - Regular Page 6



Minutes – Standing Committee – Lillard Hall 
June 2, 2022 
Page 2 
 
 

 
 

5) Open Forum  

Commissioner Amy brought up the women’s toilet in need of repair.  It has not been shutting off for over a 
month, this is hard on both pump and septic system.  Hall Manager is to schedule a plumber for the repair. 

 

6) Calendar  

a) The next Lillard Hall Committee meeting to be determined as necessary 

None scheduled at this time. 

 

7) Adjourn 

Meeting adjourned at 4:56 PM by Commissioner Amy. 

 

Approved ________________________ 

 

 

___________________________________________  ___________________________________________ 
Commissioner Emily Amy     Finalized by Interim Clerk Rita 
 

D   R
   A

   F
   T

Agenda Packet - 06-21-2022 - Board - Regular Page 7



LILLARD HALL USE/RENTAL POLICIES 
 

 

  Page 1 of 6 (v 021522072122) 

 
Applicant Name  ___________________________________ Event Date  ______________________ 
 
 
 

USE AND RENTAL CONDITIONS 
 
Following are the conditions for the use/rental of Lillard Hall, the surrounding lawns, and the public parking 
area: 
 
1. The applicant must be at least 18 years of age. 

 
2. If alcohol is to be served at the event the applicant must: 
 

a. be at least 21 years of age and able to show current and valid identification upon request; 
 

b. contract for and provide two uniformed security guards from a security company licensed 
by the California Department of Consumer Affairs, Bureau of Security and Investigative 
Services and provide a copy of the paid contract with the security firm (which contract shall 
include the company’s state license number) to the Hall manager no later than 14 days 
prior to the event, or upon approval of the Application if the event date is within 14 days.; 
and 

 
c. no later than 14 days prior to the event, or upon approval of the Application if the event 

date is within 14 days, provide proof of insurance and a copy of the paid security firm 
contract to the Hall Manager. 

 
3. Obtain liability insurance listing WPFPD as an additional insured for the use of the venue in the 

minimum amount of $1,000,000.00 against property damage, personal injury, and wrongful death 
(insurance). Additional Event Insurance will be required if Bouncy Houses/Carnival Rides present 
at event.  

 
4. If the event will have a live band, DJ or music, the applicant must provide two uniformed security 

guards from a security company licensed by the California Department of Consumer Affairs, 
Bureau of Security and Investigative Services and provide a copy of the paid contract with the 
security firm (which contract shall include the company’s state license number) to the Hall manager 
no later than 14 days prior to the event, or upon approval of the Application if the event date is 
within 14 days. Security guards must remain on-site until the duration of the event. Security 
guards must also check-in with on-duty fire fighter upon arrival.  

 
5. If the applicant is neither a resident of the West Plainfield Fire Protection District (WPFPD or 

District) nor District personnel, at the discretion of the Hall Manager the Hall Manager may require 
that the applicant appear before the Board of Commissioners (Board) for approval. NOTE: The 
Board meets monthly, typically on the 3rd Tuesday. 

 

D   R
   A

   F
   T

Agenda Packet - 06-21-2022 - Board - Regular Page 8



LILLARD HALL USE/RENTAL POLICIES 
 

 

  Page 2 of 6 (v 021522072122) 

6. "Sub-leasing" of the Hall is not allowed (i.e., a resident of the WPFPD cannot apply for the 
use/rental of the Hall for another person who may be a non-district resident). 

 
7. The applicant must attend, and personally supervise, the event and shall meet all conditions 

outlined herein, as appropriate to the event. Applicant must be reachable by phone at all times 
during the event.  

 
8. The maximum permitted size of any group is 150. 
 
9. The Hall may be reserved from 10:00 am to Midnight. 

 
*Lillard Hall premises must be vacated by Midnight on date of the event. FAILURE TO 
COMPLY WILL RESULT IN A FOREFEITED SECURITY DEPOSIT 

 
10. Events must end by midnight. All applicants must secure and lock all windows and doors and turn 

off the lights, heater or air conditioner prior to vacating the premises. 
 
11. No weapons of any kind allowed on premises.  

 
12. All alcoholic beverages must remain inside the hall. No glass beverage containers will be permitted 

on Lillard Hall grounds. 
 
13. Live bands, DJs and music must cease no later than 11:00 pm. 

 
14. At no time shall any of the building exits and door/panic hardware (push bars) be obstructed by 

decorations, chairs, tables or any other item in any manner whatsoever. 
 
15. All drapery and decorations must be inherently flame retardant or treated with State Fire Marshall 

approved fire retardant chemicals. 
 
16. The use of nails, screws, tacks, staples, etc. is prohibited. Cellophane tape may be used to secure 

decorative materials to walls and tables only and all tape must be removed after the function. Tape 
is not to be applied to any painted surface. The use of straw, hay and similar materials is not 
permitted. 

 
17. All fire department equipment and buildings are off limits. 
 
18. Parking on the concrete to the west of the fire station house is not permitted under any 

circumstances; event parking is permitted only on the graveled area directly in front of the Hall. 
 
19. Activities that violate federal, state or local laws, codes, standards or regulations are not permitted. 
 
20. The WPFPD reserves the right to cancel or suspend any event for just cause, including, but not 

limited to: the consumption of alcoholic beverages by minors, disorderly conduct, vandalism, 
destruction of property or the violation of any conditions contained in this Agreement. 

 

D   R
   A

   F
   T

Agenda Packet - 06-21-2022 - Board - Regular Page 9



LILLARD HALL USE/RENTAL POLICIES 
 

 

  Page 3 of 6 (v 021522072122) 

21. The WPFPD specifically reserves that right to seek recovery from the applicant for any damages to 
the premises, facilities, fixtures or furnishings. 
 

22. The applicant is responsible for any damage caused during the event. 
 
23. The WPFPD is not responsible for damage or loss of property, nor for claims arising from personal 

injury to, or death of, any guest of the applicant or the actions of any guest of the applicant. 
 

24. Applicant agrees to respect and follow direction from all WPFPD staff. 
 
25. Applicant agrees to indemnify and hold harmless the WPFPD, its officers, agents and employees 

from and against all loss or expense, including costs and attorney fees, by reason of liability 
imposed upon the WPFPD, including, but not limited to: bodily injury or death, damages to 
property, including loss of use thereof, arising out of or in consequence of the performance of the 
Agreement and these conditions, providing such injury or death to persons or damage to property 
is due or claimed to be due to the acts or omissions of the WPFPD, its officers, employees or 
agents. 

 
26. Keys to the Hall will be supplied to the applicant as arranged by the Hall Manager. 
 
27. The Hall Manager and one member of the Board may modify the Lillard Hall use/rental policies in 

specific instances as they deem appropriate. 
 

APPLICATION PROCESS 
 

The applicant should consult with the Hall Manager to determine if the Hall is available for rental. The 
applicant can also arrange to preview the facilities for suitability and limitations. 
 
If the Hall is available, an "Application for the Use of Lillard Hall" must then be completed and presented to 
the Hall Manager. The Hall Manager shall review the application and approve or deny it as outlined below. 
 

APPLICATION APPROVAL 
 

The approval process depends on the type of activity, as outlined below: 
 
 
1. A personal function (private party or event) hosted by a WPFPD personnel requires approval by 

the Hall Manager. 
 
2. A meeting (typically is defined as an event lasting no longer than two hours, hosted by an entity, 

with no food or beverage service. ) requires approval by the Hall Manager.Additional 2-hour block 
available for additional fee with Manager approval. 
 

3. Any other function (party or event hosted by or on behalf of an entity or a personal function hosted 
by a non-district resident) requires approval by the Hall Manager and one member of the Board. 

 

D   R
   A

   F
   T

Agenda Packet - 06-21-2022 - Board - Regular Page 10



LILLARD HALL USE/RENTAL POLICIES 
 

 

  Page 4 of 6 (v 021522072122) 

RENTAL FEE AND SECURITY DEPOSIT 
 

 Rental Fee Security Deposit 
Personal Function - WPFPD Personnel  None $800.00 
Personal Function - WPFPD Resident  None $800.00 
Meeting $50.00 per 2-hour block $200.00* 
Other Function  $800.00 $800.00 

 
 * A non-profit meeting may request a waiver on the deposit; requires approval of Hall Manager. 
 
The security deposit must be made no later than 7 days of application approval. The rental fee must be 
made no later than 21 days prior to the event, or upon approval of the Application if the event date is within 
21 days. If the event is within 21 days of approval, the Hall Manager may require that payment be made by 
money order, cash, or cashier’s check. 
 
If payment is made by check, money order or cashier’s check (check), two checks shall be presented to the 
Hall Manager: one for the rental fee and the other for the security deposit. Checks shall be made payable 
to the West Plainfield Lillard Hall Fund. 
 

RETURN OF RENTAL SECURITY DEPOSIT 
 
The applicant shall notify the Hall Manager of any cancellation as soon as possible. In order to receive a 
refund of the rental fee, the applicant must notify the Hall Manager of the cancellation at least 12 days prior 
to the scheduled event. 
 
If the application states that alcohol will not be served and alcohol is found on the premises, and is 
determined to be associated with the event or anyone attending the event, the event will be immediately 
terminated and neither the security deposit will be returned to the applicant. 
 

DAMAGE AND CLEANING 
 
Shortly after 1:00 pm the day following the event, the Hall Manager will inspect the premises. The entire 
security deposit will be refunded to the applicant only if the Hall Manager determines the following 
conditions have been met: 
 
1. All debris has been deposited in the dumpster located in the parking area south of Lillard Hall and 

the lids are closed tightly. 
 
2. All exterior grounds and parking lot were properly cleaned of debris immediately following 

termination of the event. 
3. All decorations and materials used to affix the decorations have been properly removed. 

 
4. All chairs and tables have been cleaned and properly restored. 
 
5. The floors have been swept clean and wet mopped. 
 

D   R
   A

   F
   T

Agenda Packet - 06-21-2022 - Board - Regular Page 11



LILLARD HALL USE/RENTAL POLICIES 
 

 

  Page 5 of 6 (v 021522072122) 

6. The bathrooms (including the sinks, toilets and floors) have been cleaned. 
 
7. The kitchen sinks, counters, refrigerator, range, grill and floor have been cleaned. 
 
The Hall Manager shall notify the applicant of any deficiencies and may allow the applicant to correct the 
deficiencies. If the applicant fails to correct the deficiencies within a 24-hour period, the Hall Manager shall 
use the security deposit to correct the deficiencies. 
 
If the Hall Manager determines that additional cleaning or repairs are required the Security Deposit will be 
withheld until the cleaning is complete. The cost of the cleaning or repairs will be deducted from the deposit 
and the balance returned to the applicant.  
 
If the cost to bring the premises back to its original condition exceeds the deposit amount, the applicant will 
be billed the excess charges. The applicant shall be denied further use of the Hall. If the applicant fails to 
pay the additional charges the WPFPD will take legal action to secure payment. 
 
THE WPFPD RESERVES THE RIGHT TO CANCEL OR SUSPEND ANY EVENT FOR JUST CAUSE, 
INCLUDING, BUT NOT LIMITED TO: THE CONSUMPTION OF ALCOHOLIC BEVERAGES BY MINORS, 
DISORDERLY CONDUCT, VANDALISM, DESTRUCTION OF PROPERTY OR THE VIOLATION OF ANY 
CONDITIONS CONTAINED IN THIS AGREEMENT. 
 
 
FAILURE TO MEET USE AND RENTAL POLICY WILL RESULT IN FOREFITURE OF SECURITY 
DEPOSIT.  
 
 
 
I, ________________________________, applicant herein, have read and understand the above Lillard 
Hall Use/Rental Policies. 
 
 
 
Signature  _______________________________________________ Date  _____________________ 
 
 
 

D   R
   A

   F
   T

Agenda Packet - 06-21-2022 - Board - Regular Page 12



LILLARD HALL USE/RENTAL POLICIES 
 

 

  Page 6 of 6 (v 021522072122) 

CONTRACT ADDENDUM 

Required for all users after June 23, 2021 
 
 
All users of Lillard Hall will follow any posted rules at the Hall, and the most recent guidelines set by 
California Department of Public Health (CDPH), the State of California and/or Yolo County. The following 
websites will provide the most recent guidelines and information. 
 
 
California Department of Public Health  
www.cdph.ca.gov  
 
State of California  
www.covid19.ca.gov  
 
Yolo County  
www.yolocounty.org  
 
 
 
 
Signature  _______________________________________________ Date  _____________________ 

D   R
   A

   F
   T

Agenda Packet - 06-21-2022 - Board - Regular Page 13

http://www.cdph.ca.gov/
http://www.covid19.ca.gov/
http://www.yolocounty.org/


Agenda Packet - 06-21-2022 - Board - Regular Page 14



Agenda Packet - 06-21-2022 - Board - Regular Page 15



Agenda Packet - 06-21-2022 - Board - Regular Page 16



Agenda Packet - 06-21-2022 - Board - Regular Page 17



Agenda Packet - 06-21-2022 - Board - Regular Page 18



Agenda Packet - 06-21-2022 - Board - Regular Page 19



Agenda Packet - 06-21-2022 - Board - Regular Page 20



Agenda Packet - 06-21-2022 - Board - Regular Page 21



5,460.00
43.79

1,769.52
231.81

1,085.84
342.97

3.65
375.22
240.86
181.77
648.94

20.65

Total: $10,405.02

Quill

US Bank
Wizix

Silke Communications
Sterling May Equipment Company

West Plainfield Fire Protection District
24901 County Road 95, Davis, CA 95616                (530) 756-0212

June 21, 2022

Auditor-Controller

625 Court Street

Woodland, CA 95695

This letter is to inform you that the West Plainfield Fire Protection District's

Board of Commissioners has approved for paymnent the bills listed below:

Interstate Oil Company

Recology

PGE

ATT (CalNet)

LEAF

Cal Fire

Pisani's

D   R
   A

   F
   T

Agenda Packet - 06-21-2022 - Board - Regular Page 22



 

          

  West Plainfield Fire Protection District   

24901 County Road 95, Davis, CA 95616                (530) 756-0212 

                
 

MINUTES - BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS – REGULAR MEETING 
May 17, 2022 at 7:00 PM 

 
 

Held via Video and Teleconference 

Video Meeting Information 

https://us06web.zoom.us/j/98831083439 

Meeting ID: 988 3108 3439 

 

Phone Meeting Information 

Dial In by Phone +1 (669) 900-6833 (USA) 

 

Remote Meeting Locations:  26213 County Road 96, Davis, CA 95616 

34791 Creeksedge Road, Davis, CA 95616 

37007 Russell Boulevard, Davis, CA 95616 

      2655 Portage Bay East #2, Davis 

 

 
1. Call the Meeting to Order and Establish Quorum (President McMullen) 

President McMullen called the meeting to order at 1904 hours. Interim Clerk Rita 
called roll. Present were: 

Commissioners: James McMullen, Jim Yeager, Richard Guarino, Emily Amy 

Staff: Chief Rita, BC Wilson, Hall Manager Gonzalez 

Public: Patrick Fish 

 

2. Public Comment 

None. 

 

3. Old Business 

a. Update - Weed Abatement (BC Wilson) 

BC Wilson reported that Firefighters Jon Lee, Peter Maggenti, and Steve 
Wiler were nearly done with the inspections. The Board, through President 
McMullen, want to thank Firefighters Jon Lee, Peter Maggenti, and Steve 
Wiler for their work on this. 

BC Wilson also reported that he had met with the new Yolo County Code 
enforcement officer, Dawn. She has provided some valuable information to 
us and has expressed a desire to assist as necessary. Dawn directed 
BC Wilson to the Yolo County Property Maintenance Code, which she 
would use in conjunction with our Weed Abatement Program. She also 
confirmed what BC Wilson and staff had been using as a tool for property 
access is the correct approach: essentially, wherever a UPS or Amazon 

Agenda Packet - 06-21-2022 - Board - Regular Page 23

https://us06web.zoom.us/j/98831083439


Minutes - Board Meeting – Regular 
May 17, 2022 
Page 2 
 
 

driver can access, so can we. Otherwise, as was known, we need to get 
permission. 

Commissioner Yeager told the Board he had talked with many people, who 
were concerned about tall grasses and mitigation: mowing versus discing. 
Commissioner Yeager conceded that most homeowners don’t have 
equipment for discing and that mowing was currently the best method for 
removal and in line with our current Weed Abatement Program. 

 

i.  Discussion / Action – 2023 Mailing (BC Wilson) 

Costs for the two options (postcard vs letter) were discussed. 

Postcard: $193, this year. 

Letter: direct minimums were high (usually around 500) and we do 
not have that many; the two options researched were Postalytics, 
whose price was estimated to be about $430; the Post Office, $476.  

BC Wilson indicted we had been getting response from the post 
card and believes that those that are going to comply will and those 
that are not, whether they get a Post Card or a letter. For those that 
need a bit more guidance, when we send the Notice of Abatement, 
we have been enclosing a copy of the Chief’s Letter, with the 
guidelines, and our Burn pamphlet. 

Chief Rita pointed out that we are many years into the Program. 
Residents are aware of the program and at this point sending a 
post card versus a letter does not make much difference with 
respect to compliance. Additionally, anywhere we can save time 
and money is always a good thing. 

By consensus, it was agreed to use the post card mailing for next 
year’s Weed Abatement Program kick-off.  

 

b. Update – Yolo County Fire Sustainability Committee (AC Stiles) 

AC Stiles was not present. Chief Rita provided the following update: 

- There has been no recent meeting. 

- AC Stiles has been informed there will be no additional funds disbursed 
this fiscal year and the Districts continue to push for the remaining funds 
to be rolled over and added to next fiscal year for allocation among the 
Districts. 

- AC Stiles has been informed the County has signed a contract with SCI 
for the 218 study. A kick-off meeting is currently scheduled for May 23, 
2022, for the Fire Sustainability Committee to meet with SCI 
representatives. 

 

Agenda Packet - 06-21-2022 - Board - Regular Page 24



Minutes - Board Meeting – Regular 
May 17, 2022 
Page 3 
 
 
4. Lillard Hall 

a. Manager Report (Hall Manager Gonzalez) 

The Hall Manager presented her report. She reported she had received 
information that the two events in May appear to have gone well. 

 

5. New Business  

a. Discussion / Action - Volunteer Applications (BC Wilson) 

None. 

 

b. Discussion / Action – Commissioner Hjerpe Retirement / Recognition 

BC Wilson reported he had jumped the gun a bit and ordered a plaque for 
Commissioner Hjerpe. He shared a copy of the plaque at the meeting. The 
Board was generally happy with the wording and approved that purchase for 
presentation to Commissioner Hjerpe. 

President McMullen mentioned that the Fire Protection should be in any 
future commendations. 

Motion: Approve prior purchase of plaque recognizing Commissioner 
Hjerpe’s years of service 

By: Amy 
Second: Yeager 
Discussion: None 
Vote (roll call): Yeager – Aye 

Guarino – Aye 
Amy – Aye 
McMullen – Aye 

 

Commissioner Yeager asked whether we had also recognized 
Commissioner Beoshanz’s service in any way. After discussion, it was 
determined that we had not, but the Board of Supervisors had. Hall 
Manager Gonzalez (the Board Clerk at the time) confirmed that we had not, 
as Commissioner Beoshanz’s retirement had occurred during the height of 
COVID when everyone was having virtual meetings. 

President McMullen asked Interim Clerk Rita if it would appropriate to hold a 
discussion and possible vote about recognizing Commissioner Beoshanz’s 
rears of service with a plaque. She indicated that it met the two criteria for 
proceeding, provided everyone agreed: (1) it was not know at the time of 
posting the agent (it was not) and (2) it could not wait (Interim Clerk Rita felt 
it met this criteria because otherwise it might cause some hardship in the 
event Commissioner Beoshanz heard about it and was upset he had also 
not been recognized for his many, many years of service). 

President McMullen revisited the issue of “West Plainfield Fire Department” 
versus “West Plainfield Fire Protection District.” Consensus was to change 

Agenda Packet - 06-21-2022 - Board - Regular Page 25



Minutes - Board Meeting – Regular 
May 17, 2022 
Page 4 
 
 

the wording for the plaque for Commissioner Beoshanz to reference of to 
the District. 

Motion: Directing BC Wilson to order a similar plaque recognizing 
Commissioner Beoshanz, changing reference from Fire 
Department to Fire District 

By: Yeager 
Second: Guarino 
Discussion: None 
Vote (roll call): Yeager – Aye 

Guarino – Aye 
Amy – Aye 
McMullen – Aye 

 

c. Discussion / Action – Approve Joint Operations Agreement with 
Willow Oak Fire Protection District, as revised, and Authorize 
Signature (Chief Rita) 

Chief Rita informed the Board that County Counsel and YCPARMIA had 
both signed off on the wording, as revised, of the Agreement and asked that 
the Board authorize its signature, by the Fire Chief. President McMullen 
asked if anyone had any concerns or questions. Commissioner Yeager 
again expressed concern that Item 2B of the Agreement could result in our 
District providing more aid to Willow Oak District. Discussion was held 
regarding that issue among the Board members and Fire Chief Rita again 
assured the Board that that was not the case. 

Motion: Approve and accept the Joint Operations Agreement with 
Willow Oak Fire Protection District, as revised, and 
authorizing Chief Rita to sign on behalf of West Plainfield 
Fire Protection District  

By: Amy 
Second: Yeager 
Discussion: None 
Vote (roll call): Yeager – Aye 

Guarino – Aye 
Amy – Aye 
McMullen – Aye 

 

d. Discussion / Action – Holiday Leave – Paid Out Monthly (as adopted) 
vs Allowed to Accrue with Vacation Leave 

Chief Rita reported that career staff had requested that the Board consider 
authorizing Holiday Pay be added to accrued Vacation Leave, which is what 
they remembered having been discussed in the Committee meeting but was 
not as presented to the full Board. The Board had been presented with 
changes in Holiday leave resulting in set equal Holiday allocation among the 
full-time career staff, paid out in equal amounts each month. Chief Rita 
indicated that her notes were, unfortunately, not clear about it. President 

Agenda Packet - 06-21-2022 - Board - Regular Page 26



Minutes - Board Meeting – Regular 
May 17, 2022 
Page 5 
 
 

McMullen directed that this matter go back to committee for resolution and a 
committee recommendation for the full Board. 

 

e. Discussion / Action – Standing Committees – Reports 

i. Budget and Benefits Committee – Yeager, Guarino 

No meeting; no report. 

 

ii. Personnel Committee – Vacant, Yeager 

No meeting; no report. President McMullen appointed Commissioner 
Amy to the vacant chair position on the committee. 

 

iii. District Funding and Development Committee - Guarino, Amy 

No meeting; no report. 

 

iv. Lillard Hall Committee – Amy, Vacant 

1. Discussion / Action – Approve May 12, 2022 minutes 
(Commissioner Amy) 

Motion: Approve May 12, 2022, minutes as presented. 
By: Amy 
Second: Guarino 
Discussion: None 
Vote (roll call): Yeager – Aye 

Guarino – Aye 
Amy – Aye 
McMullen – Aye 

 

President McMullen appointed Commissioner Guarino to the 
vacant spot on the committee. 

 

2. Discussion / Action – Alter Hall Agreement language to 
set the Meeting rate for a 2-hour block at $50 and add an 
option to reserve an additional 2-hour Meeting block for 
an additional $50 fee if approved by the Hall Manager 
(Commissioner Amy) 

Commissioner Amy discussed how the committee came to the 
recommended action. After much discussion of different 
possible options, President McMullen sent the item back to 
committee. 

 

Agenda Packet - 06-21-2022 - Board - Regular Page 27



Minutes - Board Meeting – Regular 
May 17, 2022 
Page 6 
 
 

f. Discussion / Action – Ad Hoc Committee Reports 

i. LAFCO – Guarino, Yeager 

A meeting to review the draft LAFCO report as it relates to West 
Plainfield Fire Protection District is currently scheduled. The 
committee members should have already received a copy of the 
draft. Chief Rita said she would then send any revisions to LAFCO. 
LAFCO is expected to try to bring the entire final MSA document to 
the LAFCO board before the end of June. 

 

ii. Solar – Guarino, Vacant 

President McMullen asked if this committee could be dissolved. Chief 
Rita asked that it remain as she was just waiting for a few more 
proposals, hopefully with funding options, and would want to review 
them in the hope the District can switch to solar and save funds. 

President McMullen concurred and appointed himself to fill the 
vacant position on the committee, for now. 

 

iii. Inspection Fees – Yeager, Amy 

1. Discussion / Action – Approve May 3, 2022 minutes 
(Commissioner Amy) 

Motion: Approve May 3, 2022, minutes as presented. 
By: Amy 
Second: Guarino 
Discussion: None 
Vote (roll call): Yeager – Aye 

Guarino – Aye 
Amy – Aye 
McMullen – Aye 

 

2. Discussion / Action – Review Committee recommendation 
to charge $150 on re-inspection and determine how to 
proceed (Commissioner Amy) 

Chair Amy recapped the meeting. After some discussion and 
thoughts regarding alternative proposals, President McMullen 
sent this item back to committee. In the meantime, staff should 
research the process necessary to adopt fees for inspection 
and/or re-inspection. 

 

g. Discussion / Action – Liaison Reports  

i. Fire Prevention / Investigation – McMullen 

Nothing to report. 

Agenda Packet - 06-21-2022 - Board - Regular Page 28



Minutes - Board Meeting – Regular 
May 17, 2022 
Page 7 
 
 

 

ii. Training – Yeager  

Nothing to report. 

 

iii. Large Equipment / Facilities – McMullen  

Nothing to report. 

 

iv. IHS – McMullen 

BC Wilson is working to obtain training for our new career staff so we 
can perform the inspections we are required to do for Sacred Oaks. 
Sacred Oaks is now expected to start receiving residents on June 27, 
2022. The Department will also be providing fire extinguisher training 
to the Sacred Oaks staff. 

 

6. Fire Chief’s Report (Chief Rita) 

Chief Rita reported that the Fire Department had been the subject of an OSHA 
inspection. Someone filed an anonymous complaint regarding diesel exhaust 
exposure. The OSHA representatives did not find any harmful levels in any of their 
tests: inside the station, in the bay, surrounding the outside of the station. As is 
their usual practice, they also inspected various other items. It appears we will be 
receiving records requests and at least two citations. Items noted potentially to be 
deficient and/or citable: (a) no clear access to the electrical panel, (b) no current 
permits for the compressor, (c) no current OSHA postings. Otherwise, Chief Rita 
had nothing to report that had not already been reported on elsewhere during the 
meeting. 

 

7. Battalion Chief’s Report (BC Wilson) 

Nothing to add to written report provided in the Board packet. 

 

8. Fire Fighter’s Association Report (Jon Lee) 

The Association has the beer booth at the Yolo County Fair this year, in August. 

  

9. Clerk’s Report (Interim Clerk Rita) 

Interim Clerk Rita reported that she had not yet posted the job for Board Clerk. 
Interim Clerk Rita asked the Board if setting up recurring payments for some of the 
District’s bills was acceptable to the Board. After some discussion, the Board 
agreed by consensus, that setting up the following for auto-, recurring payments 
was acceptable and preferable to continuing to pay late fees and charges: 

Agenda Packet - 06-21-2022 - Board - Regular Page 29



Minutes - Board Meeting – Regular 
May 17, 2022 
Page 8 
 
 

i. AT&T - First Net 
ii. AT&T – CalNet 
iii. Clark Pest 
iv. LEAF 
v. PG&E 
vi. Recology 
vii. Wizix 

 

b. Discussion / Action – West Plainfield Fire Protection District Bill 
Review / Approval 

Motion: Approve payment of bills totaling $4,781.79. 
By: Yeager 
Second: Guarino 
Discussion: None 
Vote (roll call): Yeager – Aye 

Guarino – Aye 
Amy – Aye 
McMullen – Aye 

 

c. Approval of April 19, 2022 Board Meeting Minutes (Interim Clerk Rita) 

Motion: Approve the April 19, 2022, minutes as presented. 
By: Guarino 
Second: Yeager 
Discussion: None 
Vote (roll call): Yeager – Aye 

Guarino – Aye 
Amy – Aye 
McMullen – Aye 

 
10. Open Forum 

President McMullen requested a moment of silence for the passing of retired 
Assistant Chief Mike Smith. Nothing else under Open Forum. 

  

11. Next regular Board meeting on June 21, 2022, unless another date is agreed 
upon 

Next meeting confirmed for June 21, 2022, in person. 

 

12. Meeting Adjourned (President McMullen) 

Motion: Adjourn Meeting 
By: Richard Guarino 
Second: Jim Yeager 
Discussion: None 

Agenda Packet - 06-21-2022 - Board - Regular Page 30



Minutes - Board Meeting – Regular 
May 17, 2022 
Page 9 
 
 

Vote (roll call): McMullen – Aye 
Yeager – Aye 
Guarino – Aye 
Amy – Aye 

Meeting adjourned at 2042 hours. 

 

Date Approved: ______________________ 

 

________________________________  ________________________________ 
President McMullen     Interim Board Clerk Rita 

 

 

 

 

 

Agenda Packet - 06-21-2022 - Board - Regular Page 31




